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September 20,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an existing
SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord, NH, by increasing the price limitation by $329,696 from
$6,892,544 to $7,222,240 using additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
funds from remaining regular program year funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children and Families, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council
approval through September 30, 2024. There is no time extension being requested for this contract.

This contract was originally approved by Govemor and Executive Council on December 7,2022
(Item #34) and amended on April 12,2023 (item #70). 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available for FY2024 in the following account:

Department of Energy. LIHEAP FUEL ASST

02-052-052-520510-33540000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST FY2024

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $329,696

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract that is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance
of the Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities. NH DOE proposes
to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at
the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the NH DOE Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.



The Department was awarded $1,890,528 in additional Low Income Home Energy Program
(LIHEAP) funds, for Program Year 23 (PY23), known in New Hampshire as the Fuel Assistance
Program (FAP) and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies for the upcoming
winter heating season.

This Department contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support
eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are
in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs during the winter season. LIHEAP/FAP is a
federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more affordable for income-qualified
families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are targeted to low-income
households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income guidelines. The
Department subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local
level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted.

Oared Chicoine

/ Commissioner

/



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

COMMUNITY ACTION-PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment dated August 14, 2023, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "State") and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc., P.O. Box 1016, 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302
(hereinafter the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on December 7, 2022, (Item #34), and amended on April 12, 2023 (Item
#70) the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified
in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified
therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement In certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modificatioii of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraoh 1.8 of the Agreement bv striking
the current sum of $6,892,544 ,and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of$7,222,240.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $6,892,544 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of$7,222,240.

Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current sum of $345,900
and inserting for administrative costs $394,176.

Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current sum of
$3,667,337 and inserting for program costs $3,948,757.

CAPDM Amcndmeni Contractor Initials:

Grants: 2301NHI.IEA & 2301NHLrEI Dale:
CFDA: 93.568 Page 1 of 3



CONTRACT AMENDMENT
NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

2. ConHnitancc of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN-WITNESS -WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their-hands as of-the day and year-first—
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Eporgy

red Chicoine, Commissioner

Cor/munity Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack
Counties, Inc.

Michael Tabory. Chl€/'bperating Officer

State of New Hampshire

County of Merhmack

On this _18th day of August , 2023, before me, Kathv L Howard , the
undersigned officer, personally appeared Michael Tabory who acknowledged
himself/herself to be the Chief OperatinQ Officer of Community Action Program Belknan-

Merrimack Counties. Inc.. a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do, executed the
foregoing instrument forihc purposes contained therein. l i.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Jw>tkg=gf^hg#gact
My Commission expires; l. nq^iwwq

My Ci^mii nn^i t'. atB#"

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Date:

Assistant Attorney General

9/1/2023

CAPBM Amendmeni

Grtnts; 230INHUEA & 2301NHLIFI

CFDA: 93.368

Contrscior Initiab:

Page 2 of3



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2023.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

CAPBM Amendment Contractor InitiaJs:

Grants: 2301KHL1EA A 2301NHUEI Date:,
CFDA: 93.568 ' ' Page 3 of 3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrcian' of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

10 transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secreiaiy of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0005774597

SI

I&.

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965e

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Christopher J. Pvles. Chairperson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected ofRcer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties inc

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 9. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED; That ./eanne Agrl, C/i/ef &recufiVe Officer/ExecutrVe D/recfor, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating OfTicer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerlses, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Oregoire, Budget Analyst, Cfir/sfopfier J. Pyles, Chairperson, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of .Community Action Program Belknao-Merrlmack Counties. Inc. to enter
Into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of rts agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, reyislons, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her.
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

■  '

Dated: 8/16/2023 Signature of Elected Officer /'
N^rneLGhdstSpher J. Pyjes
Title: Chairperson, Board of Directors

R«v. V9/2023
ItfcCAPSM COK 2023

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Indusaial Park Ddve, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTy/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898

Website: capbm.otg



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
0AT6 (MWDOrtTYY)

03/14/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the cerdflcate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER

Fl/V/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

contact Susan Sullivan

K. ,..,,, 1603)669-3218 (603)645-1331
ADDRESS- "^'^•cslsQcrossagency.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE - NAIC •

INSURER A Selective Insurance Co. of SO 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrlmack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER e Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Federal Ins Co 20261

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 ALL 23-24 WDD&O REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TnSr*
TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

X

POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAJMS-MAOE OCCUR

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY LOC

OTHER:

S2509940

IMM/DO/YYYYI

10/01/2022

(mmpo/yyyy)

10/01/2023

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO UMTED
PREMISES tE> OCemT»iK»)

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

1,000.000

1.000.000

20.000

1,000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE UMTT
(E«>eddentl S 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (P«r p«r»on)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 BODILY INJURY (Ptr acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
tP»f accMent)

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5.000,000

S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023
AGGREGATE 5.000.000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOR/RARTNER/EXECUnVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
{Mwdatory In NH}
If m. dMcnb* undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH-

iS_

H HCHS20230000547 (3a.) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1.000.000

Directors & Officers Liability
82471794 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

Limit

Deductible

S 1,000.000

S 5.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonel Remerlit Schedule, mey be aaiched if more epece i« required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorserT>ents and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire: Dept of Energy

21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

-ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVtSJONS. - - -

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE j 4
COMMISSIONER Ivy
JaredS Clwine - 1-600-735-2964

)  Tel (603)271-3670
OeklTY COMMISSIONER H@Bi48®/ I
Ovistopher J. EUmi. Jr. " FAX No 271-1526

Wfebsie:

ww«v.ene<QY.nh gov
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Ffxil St.. Su«e 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429 '

April 12, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu.
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into an amc^ment to an existing SOLE SOURCE
Contract Agreement with Community Xaion Program BeWmap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (VC# 177203),
Concord, NH, by increasing the price limitation by $2,449,396 from $4,443,148 to $6,892,544 using additional
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act(lUA) and from remaining regular program year funds, both from the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, efTective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30,2024. There is no time extension being requested for this
contract.

This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on December 7.2022 (Item #34).
100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available for FY2023 in the following account contingent on the Accept and Expend for
$16,497,794 on this agenda:

Dcciartment of Energy. LIHEAP FUEL ASST.

02-052-052-5200IO-33540000 FY2023

LIHEAP FUEL AiOT " $2,449,396 .
074-500587 Giants for Pub Assist &'Rclicf

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract that is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical perforrtiancc of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program , their outreach and client service capabilities. Energy profxises to continue to subcontract with
the five CAAs who have successfully provid^ similar services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Energy Fuel Assistance Program Administrator in the
implementation of several low-income programs. !

Additional funding of$12,277,671 was received statewide for Program jYear 23 (PY23). This amendment ̂ s
these additional funds to the existing contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies for



His Excellency, Govcmor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

April! 2.2023.
P^c2bf2

this and the next winter heating season. Demand and tenefit amounts ijave varied across the C AAs ̂ d these
amendments seek to position these additional funds to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents,-especially the woriring poor, elderly and disabled citizens who arc in need of assistance to
helppay for heating costs during the winter Mason. LIHEAP/FAP is a federally funded statewide program that
makes home energy more afTordablc for income-qualified families, disabled arid elderly residents of New
Hampshire. Program funds arc targeted to low-income households with high energy burdens. Federal law
esl^lishes ioaximum income guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are resfx)nsible for
providing FAP services at the loca! level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available. General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

espcctfully stibmitted.

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



ts'BW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
COMMLTNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT •

This Amendmenl dated ^ 2023, is between the State of New Hampshire
Departnicnt of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Meirimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter
referred to as the "Stale") and Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.. PC
Box 1016, 2 industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302 (hereinafter the
"Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to aslhc "■Agreement"), as approved by
Govemor and Council on December 7, 2022 (Item ^34), the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by thc.Siaic of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of'Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only
after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHER£AS, The Slate and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following;

I • Amendment and Modification of Aereemcpt. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparaginph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $4,443,148 and insening in place thereof the lota) sum of
S6,892,544. [

B) Exhibit C - Pavmcnt Terms: Amend Exhibit C, fi rst paragraph by striking
the cun-ent sum of $4,443,148 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$6,892,544.

Amend-Exhibit C. third paragraph by striking the current sum of $330,845
and inserting for administrative costs $345,900.

Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current suifi of $2,759,164
and inserting for program costs $3,667,337.

CAPBM Amendment i Contractor Initials:
Grants: 2301NIILIEA.& 230INHLIEE Date: 3-16.2023
CFDA: 93,568 Paye 1 of 3



Amend Exhibil C. fourth paragraph bj striking the current sum ofSI 18,536
and inserting for Supplemental Funds administrative costs $269,778.

Arhend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current sum of $1,077:603
and inserting for Supplemental Funds program costs $2,452,529.

Contlntiancc of Aerccnicht. Except as specifically amended and modified by'lhe Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parlies hereunder shall remain in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agrcemcht as it existed
immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written. !

STATE OF NEW H^PSHIRE
NH D^bartinenl pfifcnerEy

Ircd Chicoinc, Cornniissloncr

Coit/munii> Action Progtsun Belknap-MerrimAik Counties, Inc.

State of Hamp«nife

fName & Title of Pjwsbn Authori^trC to ojg
Hy/ Ago • CEO

Countv of Merrimack

On this /^-//idav of /i 2023. before me, A-.WL. /_. Hr
the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared d ]_ who
acknowledged himself/herself to be the .7, of Community Action
Proerain Dclknap-Mcrrintack Counties. Inc.. a corporation, arid that he/she being authorised so to
do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand^iiml olTicial Kal- /

No,Dr>/ublicyj„s;1ce-,.f .he
My Commission e.xpires; i r. " mfcaim r^*ii nrWuT f TT

Approved as to form, e.xccution and substance;

OFFICE OF

By:

ORNGY GENERAL

A.ssi.stant Aiiomcy General

3/23/2023

Date:

CAPBM Amendmcni

Gramj: 230INHLIEA &. 2301NHI.IEE

CFDA: 93.56«

Contractor Initials: ,
Date;

Page 2 of 3



I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was ̂ RMved ̂ ihcCovemor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire at their meeting on APR 1 L Z0Z3 ^ 2023.

.RY OF STATE .OFFICE SECRE

By:

SECRETARY OF STATE

CAPBM Amendment Contractor initials:

Grants: 2301NHLIEA & 230I^^HLIEE Date: 3-16.2023

CFDA: 93.368 Page 3 of 3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify- that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hainpsltire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 196S. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

Stale's ofTice have been received artd is in good standing as far as this office is concemed.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number; 0005774597

o

A
>►

%
fT

-C4

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9ih day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



OuickStarl htips://quicksinrLsos.nh.gos'/onlinc/Busincsslnquire/Busmcsslnformaii:..

Business Information

Business Details

Business ID: 63021

COMMUNITY ACTION

Business Name: PROGRAM BELKNAP AND

MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

Business Type: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation Business Status: Good Standing

Name in State of
NBusiness Creation Date: 05/28/1965

Date of Formation in

Incorporation:
ot Available

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Mailing Address: PO Box 1016, Concord. NH.
Address; NH, 03.301, USA 03302, USA

Citizenship / State of
Domestic/New Hampshire

Incorporation;

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: sgregoire@bm-cap.org

Notification Email: fiscal@bm-cap.ofg

Last Nonprofit
2020

Report Year:

Next Report Year: 2025

Phone #: NONE

Fiscal Year End
NONE

Date;

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code

1  Health Care and Social Assistance

2  NOT REQUIRED

P»g« 1 of 1. records 1 to 2 of 2

NAICS Subcode

Other Individual and Family Services

2 of 4
3/17/2023. 7:44 .AM



QuickSlart htips;//quicksfari.sos.nh.gov/online/Businesslnquirc/Businesslnforniaii...

Principals Infprmation

Name/Title

Heather Brown / Director

Dennis Martino / President

David Siff, Esq. / Vice President

Safia Wazir / Treasurer'

Robert Krieger / Secretary

Business Address

10 Dow Lane, Center Barnstead, NH. 03225, USA

4 Pinewood Drive, Cohtbocook, NH. 03229, USA

24 Montgomery Street, Concord, NH, 03301 - 4311, USA

74 Canton Circle. Concord, NH. 03301, USA

333 Daniel Webster Highway, Boscawen, NH. 03303, USA

< Previous 1  2 3 Next > i Page 1 of 3, records 1 to 5 of t1 Go to Page

Registered Agent Infprmation

Name; Not Available

Registered Office Not Available

Address:

Registered Mailing Not Available
Address:

Trade Namie Information

Business Name

The Fixit Program (/online/BusinessInquire
/TradeNameInforrriation?businessID=345325)

NH Modular Ramps (/onllne/BusinessInquire
/TradeNameInfprmation?businessID=422388)

Home (ADA) Modifiers of NH (/online

/Buslnesslnquire

/TradeNameIhformation?businesslD=48743S)

Community Action Program (/online
/Buslnesslnquire

/Trad€Namelnformation?businessIO=565886)

LAKES REGION FAMILY.CENTER (/online

/Buslnesslnquire

/TradeNameInforrhatiori?businessID=627630)

LAKES REGION FAMILY CENTER (/online

/Busiriesslnquire
/TradeNameInformatipn?businessID=627671)

Business ID

536870

598207

652885

739355

801584

801625

Business Status

Active

Inactive

Expired

Active

Rejected

Active

3of4
3/17/2023,7:44 AM



QuickStort hiips://qiiickstarl.sos.nh.go\'/online/BusinessInqijire/Busincsslnformaii... 'i

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

TrademarkTnformation

Trademark

Number
Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses Name History Shares

Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back

4of4
5/17/2023, 7:44 AM
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. '
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1955

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1^ Christopher J. Pvles. Chairperson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 9. -2023. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operatirtg Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal OfTtcer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, C/irisfop/jer J. Pyles, Chairperson, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on hehalf of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Harripshire and any of its agencies or
departrrients and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posttiori(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
liinitations are expressly staled herein.

Dated: 3/15/2023 Signature of Elected Officer

5:^

[istoplier J. Pyl
Title: Chairperson. B r Directod

R«v. VO/2023
WcCAPOU CCA 2023

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Ofiice 2 IndustiisU Park Drive, Concord. NH
Phone: .603 225-3295 ] 1 600 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 PQQ Fw: 603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org ]



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
PATE (MMmomrrY)

03/14/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A kUTTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder l« an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endor»ed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
tMs certificate does not confer Hghu to the ceiitficate holder In lieu of such endorsemeht(s).

pftooucea

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Sireet

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*" Susan Sullivan
(603i 609-3218 (503)645-4331

AnoRFSs- "ianch;cens(gcrossagency,com

INSUREAIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NMCa

INSURER A; Sdcciive insurance Co. of SC 19259

INSURED

Communiiy Action F»rogfam Betknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P. O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B: Oranlle State Health Care and Human Services SeK- -

INSURERCf
20261

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

LTR

THe IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HA»/E BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERlOO
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONO'lTlON OF ANY CONTTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT V/ITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE.ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

t>6LigYeifrPOLICY EFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

COMMCftCtAL GENERAL UABILtTY

OCCURCLAtktS-LUOE

GEN\ AGGREGATE UMT APPLIES PER:

«ucy(3S Si-oc
OTHER:

AUTOMOBU.E LIABUTY

ANY AUTOX

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED '
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB

^ RETENTION tDEO

BC><ouLeo

AUTOS
NON-OWNEO
AUTOS CWA.V

OCCUR

CLAIMS-AIAOE

WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANOEMPLOYERTLUBIUTY

ANY PHOPRlETOR/PARTASR/EKECUTIVE
OFFICERACLeER EXCLUDED?
(M«mlMOfy In NH)
If va: oucnM iMPr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS aMow

B

Directors & Officers Liability

S2509940

S2509940

S2509940

HCHS20230000547 (3«.) NH

82471794

(MWDD/YYYYl

10/01/2022'

10/01/2022

10/01/2022

01/0,1/2023

04/01/2023

(MMIPO/YYVYI

10/01/2023

10/01/2023

10A51/2023

01/01/2024

04/01/2024

DESCRIPTION OF. OPERATIOMS / LOCATIOHS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. A^«1on*l RtmjrAA S«n*<loM, mair M KUChte If spac* I* rwlfO<l>

Refer to policy (or exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

WCH OCCURRENCE

DALIACE TO REhTEO
PBEUSES lEAoeeurrencel

LIED EJ:P(Anvcii>«py»on1

PERSONAL < AOVIIUURY

GENERAL ACCREGATE

PRODUCTS •COAPfOPAGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
iE«»ee»<ttn{l

BOCMLY INJURY (Par parson)

BODILY INJURY (Par accloani)

PROPERTY OALUCE
IP»f aeekaeni)

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH.

.i£_

E.L. EACH ACCiOENT

E.L. OSEASE • EA EA»L0YEE

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY IIMT

Limit

Deductible

1,000.000

1.000.000

20.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

1.000.000

5.000.000

5.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000,000

S 1.000.000

5 5.000

CANCELLATION

Slate of New Hampshire: Oept of Energy

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
accordance'WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

1

21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord

1

NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Effective 9/29/2022

y-'B.

^ COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
» BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCpUNTIESJNC,

I  EM.POWeRtNG COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis T. Martino, President
Board member since: 2/24/2005

Tracy Vergasdn
Board meniber since: 5/12/2022

Chris Pyles, Vice President
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Theresa M. Cromwell

Board member since: 5/10/2005.

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Kathy Goode
Board member since: 10/29/2009

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Clerk
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Heather Brbwri

Board member since: 1/15/2009

David Siff.'Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Ashley Reed
HS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

David Croft

Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/22 - 2/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22. 9/8/22,11/10/22,1/12/23

klhXAPDM BOO *20::



C0(A«SS10N£R
Jafed SoChiooine

TOO Access: Relay NH d \
1  I1-eClO-735-2»4

Tel. (603) 271-3670

OefVTY COSAWSSiOeR FAXNo.27M526
Ctvislopher J. Bkm, Jr. _ _

WW*«#:
vMvw.onergy.nh.gov

OePARTKENT OF ENERGY
21 S. FojftSt.SuitelO

CofKortl.N.H. 03301-2429

IXcembcr 7, 2022

q:.3c,CUc.
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REOUESTED ACTION

1) - Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Encrg>- (NM DOH) to ® wu
contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. (VC# 177203). Concord NH.
in the amount of $4,443,148 forthc I'uci As.sistance Program eff^tivc upon approval of Oovemor and,
Executive Council through ScRiembcr 30. 2024. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to,£upport this request are anticipated to' be available in tlic following account in FY 2023 upon the
avaiUbilit)' and continu^ appropriation of funds in llie future operating budget.

NH ITcpattmentofEnervv.Fuel Assistance FY2023
02-52-52-S200l()-3354^ "
074-S00587 Grants for Ihib Assist & Relief S4,443.148

2) Further request auihorizatipn to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Mcmmack Counties,
Inc. $330,839 from the above-rcfcrenccd contract amount.

FXPL.ANATION

This contract is ̂ LE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies
(CAA) in the New Hampshirc Fuei Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach ̂ d client service
Labilities, the synergies that benefit ihc.FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs imp^cnientat.on of
^al other federal assistance programs, and the infrasiruciurc that is already m place to deliver FAP
services NH DOE proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully
provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs woric closely with the
NH DOE FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded, by a Federal Low Income Assistance
fLlHEAP) Block Grant, and works-to make home encrgv- more affordable for mcome-qualiflcd New
Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or di^nbled. Program funds am
income households with high energy burdens. The currem maximum
Median Income (SMI), which is 574,941 for a famdy of four. Ilic average FAP berKflt during
program year was $ 1342. The program operates on an October 1 stjto September 30 program year.



Htf Excellmc)\ GpvOTW Chrisopha T: Simunu
rid (he Hono^e Counci I
December 7.2022

Page 2 of 2

The proposed advance of funds wil 1 enable the C A A to operate the program' between monthly
reimbursements'from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

spcctfuHy^l^itted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner
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POIW NUMBER P^7 (?cir0oo 12/11/2019)

Notice: nis tjreeniait tad all of ba.aftytimentt shall be^e pnblu opbo sufabalon to Govern and'
Executive CouQcO'lori^ipt^ Aey hiftimmion that ii priv^ cdnfiitehliiU'orpr^aiirieOay nitg
be cleaty Identlfi^ to itie eod eip^ to prior to slgnin# dw costnct

!  i

AGfiEEMW
The Stile of New Hajopshire od the Cordnccv hicr^ ih'uaaily ai^ as f^bwr

OBNE^LPBOVBIOKS'

T1 .'1'Siato-Agdiey Ninte
Naw-Haapd^ Depa^ent of Eaergy

•  .

-ij SfiBte'Ageacy'Addrba
2lSoiBthFtuftSL;Sto.'IO
Cooconl,f^Hanipsltiie 0)301

.  .' • •»

1.3 CdmractorNima'; ' *
CoomuniQr /lexiOT Projpam fietknap-Mcniinaek Counties, lot.

1.4 fjwhiMinr AitAri^

P.O. Box 1016, CoDconi^ NH 03301

1.5 -Ccnaictor phaoe
• Numher

(603)225^3295

1.6 Account Number
02'52'52'5700\0^tiS44odf>c
OMOOitl

1.7 Gotnpkt^ Date -
Scptcmbcr.30,

IJ PriceLtailoUgn
H44), 148.00

Qtro i^iglow^I, AuiitaoM Pra^ani Administnior
l.lO.StttoAgcB«yTAp(MoeNambo .

.(603)77i'..)6a7. '. ' , '

' J. i i Cbntnctpr Signsure

. JL/I J1 h t) . Dae: 11/8/2022
1.12 ■ Hame'cnd TttJe ^Coohac&M SlgDStoiy

.Jeanbe.Agri, Chi^Execulive

/  ijir*. State l.M Natoea^TlikofSiw.AgeacySigD^^

1^ Api^vti by Nil.'Dep<r«hrat of Adathlaratioo. DMito ofPerioi^

•/ By: Director, Oo;

t.U A{»pn^by*dMAAo^mQenffil(Foirn,8ubsta2KeiodExecQtion)/^(p^/icob/^

By: ^*'22/2022
1.17 iQF STATE

Page 1 of 4
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r. SERVICES TO. BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor' identified .in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panicularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incoiporated
herein by .reference ("Services")..

3. EFFECTIVE DaTE/COIWLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement tcthc
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Cbvcmor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the date the Govcmbr end Executive
Council approve this Agreement is indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agrtemcrii
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency,as shown in block. 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor •commences the Services prior to..lhc' "
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effeaivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrecmcm docs not become
effcalve, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without- limitation, any "obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs mcurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the eontmuancc of payrhcnls hcreundc^ are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state of'fcdcfal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or '.otherwise modifies the
tppropriatioo or •vallability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B.^in whole or in
part: In ho cventiShall the State be liable for. any payments
hereundcr in'excess of such available appropriated .funds. In the
evcot of a rcduciion or termination of appropriated fUnds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
bccdroe available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
.(ermihate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coritmctor notice of such reduction or termination.

• The Slate shall not be required to imsfer funds from any other
account or source to th.c Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. COf^RACT PRICEff'RICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The cbntfact price, method of payrncni, and terms of payment
arc idenrified and more particularly described in'EXHIBIT C
which Is Incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the cono^ct price shall be the
only and the complete rcimbursemerit to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compcitsaiion to the Contractor for the Services. The State ̂ all
have no liability, to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to oftset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounis required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 .Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstance, in no
event shall !the total of all payments authorized, or actuaily made
hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor! shall comply with ail applicable statutes, laws.

• regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
auihoriiics' which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportuniry laws.- In addiUonj if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statute, and with any rules, regulations ud guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. . .
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afrirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. "hic Goncractor agrees .to permit the State or United Stales
access to jmy of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
•the purpose ofascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and Q^ers, and the covenants.' terms a^ cqoditions of this
Agrecmeot.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary id pertbrm the Services. The Contractor wirrtnts that
all persorinel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to

. perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise|authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tcnn of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) mon|^ af^cr the
Complctiw Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or oiKcr person, firm or
corporetibo'with whom it is eng^ed in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person si^o is a Slate employee
or officiai, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provisionlshall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified.in block 1.9, or his or her
successor', shall be the State's representative. In thc'eveht of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be fmil for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/R£MeO[ES.

8.1 Any one or more of (he fdllowlhg acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute an event ordefautthcreunder ("Event "
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any repon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
^is. Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or rhore, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is.not tirhely cured,
tcnninatc this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice oftermination; '
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wriiten notice specifying the Event of
Ckfault and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of^ the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Coocractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give (he Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Slate may
owe to the Contractor any damages (he State suffen by ruson of
My Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the ConCractor'a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, street (he Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be.decm^ a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default oh the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Norwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement-for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thiny (30) days wrinen notice to (he Contractor that
Che Stale Is exercising Its option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of an early lerminallbn of this Agreement for
any reaibn other than the completion' of the Services, the
Ctwtractor shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting bfTtcer, not laicrihan fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject maner,
coraent, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to^those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of r>otice of early termination, develop and
submit to the State o Transition Plan for services under the
AgreemenL

Page 3

CAPeM LiH£AF23:
A«rv41 UOINKU£Art30]KHLIEE
CfDATOJM

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFnjENTlALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As lised in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this'
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordihgs..video
recording^ pictorial reproductions, drawmgs, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts^ notes,
letten, memoranda, papers, and documcnu, all whether
finished orunfuiished.
<10.2 All data and any property which has been received from,
the State or purchas^ with f^ds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agreement, shall be (he property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon tennination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndentiality ofdata sheJI be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written'^proval of the Slate.

11. CO.NTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performajKc of this Agreement the Contractor is In all respects
an indcpqident contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of (he State. Neither the Corttractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits,-workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to'lts employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall, not'assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall'be provided to the State al'least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assigninenc, and a written consent of (he State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Cohcroi shall constitute
assignment. "Change - of Control" mcaru (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related (rehsactioiis in
which 'a third party, together with its afnilates, becomes (he
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (505i) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contrecior.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice imd consent of (he State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements utd shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agrrement to which It Is hot a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officera and employees, from-and against any and all claims.
tiabiUties and corts for any personal irijury or property damage,
patent or copyright inftingement, or other claims asserted against
the State, Its officeti or employees, which'irise out of (or whkh
may be ciaimed to arise out'of) the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors; including but ml limited to (he
Dcgligence, reckless or intenilonal conduct. TTie State shall not

QACoatfttlOf InluiJi ̂ 1 *
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be liable For aoy costi Incurred by the ConMcior arising under
this paragraph l3. Notwlthstahdlhg the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute Twaivcr oTiht sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which imrhunity is' hcreby reserved to the
State. This covenant .in paragiraph i3 shall survive the
icmilnaiion of.this Agrccmcnl.

U. INSURANCE;

14.1 The Contractor shall, at. its sole expense; obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall 'require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following in$uran«-. ,
14.1.i commcrclai general liabiii^ insurance against all claims •
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and . •
|4.I:2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ail property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herem. in an'amouni not less than
80% of the whole r^laccnient value of thc'property.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph 14. i herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements apprqv^ for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H.'Dcpartnrent of thsurahce. and
issued by insurers ilcenscd'in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The'Contractor shall (urnish to the Cohtrecting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his ©"r her successor, a certificate's) of
Insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicef identified
In block 1.9, or his or hcr successor, certiflcBie(s) of insurance
for all renewal's) of insurance required under this Agfcemeni no
later than ten (10) days priof to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ceTtificaie<s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached anil are incorporaicd herein by
reference. . '

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATIpiN. .
■ 15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
end warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N:H. RSA chapierlSl-A ("Workvs'
Comptnsation ' ' '
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 28l-A,-^Conjrector shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor, or assignee to secure and mainuin,
paymeht of' Woiltcrs'. Competisaiion in connection wi*
activities which the person proposes lo'undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fWttish the CcntrKtiog Officer
identified in block l .9. or his, or her successor, proof of Workcn'
Compensation in the manner'described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-Aiand'any applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporatlrf herein by reference. The .State
shall not Ik responsible' for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums br'for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor of employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be dcdncd to have'been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the.addressw given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended; waived
or discharged only by an instiymVnt in writing signed by the
parties hci;eto and onily after approval' of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval^is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, intcrpixted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upoo and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual Intent, and no iule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.-
Any actions arising out of this Agrwmcnl shail be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFUCTINC TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P.37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control..

20. THUID PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21-." HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement ara
for reference purposes only, and the words contained-therein
shall in no"way be held to explain, modify.-amplify or aid in'thc
intetpreiaiion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiiotial or ,modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inlhc event any of the provisions oflSis
Agreement are held by a court of cpmpdent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain lit full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed en original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with.r«pe« to the subject matler
hereof.

r
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, ihe Contractpr shall
deliver to the State an indcpcndehl audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified independent
auditor in good-standing with the state and federal goycmmcht.

2. . This audit shall be conducted in accordance wi^ the audit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, "Subpah F - Audit Requirements. The Fuel
Assisiance.Prpgram shall be considered a "major program'' for purposes of this audit.

3. .This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and cxpcndimrcs by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
conipciitivc bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

A. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an Agency
■ response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters wnttcn as
a result of audits shall be forwarded to NH DOE. The audit shall be forwarded .to NH DOE within one
month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by 'an action plan'for each finding or
questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the Gcncr^ Provisions: "The form, subject matter,
content, and number ofcopiesof the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A."

6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principlcs dclailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles:'

7. Program and financial records pcrt^ning to this contract shall be rctaihcd by the Agency for
three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.334 - Retention
Rcquirerrichls for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

8. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriatjohs Act of 1995," the following provisions
are applicable to this grant award:

a) Section 507: "purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the sense of
the Congress that, to thc grcatcst extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-made."

b) Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents d«cribing projects or programs funded in whole or In
part with fcder^ money, all states receiving federal fiinds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program'or prdjecl which will be Financed
with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of ili tot^ costs of the project or program
that will be financed by non-govcmmcntal sources."

CAPBM LIH£A?23 ExhibU
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9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All finaJ required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

10. ADVANCES. Advance hinds miut be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance Program
expenditures. Advance program funds are to be. used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistance Pro^am payments, including Advance program paymecits,.must be
transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's) general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistance Propam account within 48 hours after being received clecirohically from the State.
CAAs must submit the bank account number of the designated bank account for^the advance ftinds to
NH DOE prior to the electronic submission of the fimds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program
fiinds must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any other
CAA ftinds. CAAs arc required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-dedicaicd bank
account statement to NH DOE on a monthly baris.
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EXHIBIT B f

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low-income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program
in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the.Fuel
Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined
byNHDOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outrcachi eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as dciFincd in the
Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5; Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above'.

CAP8MLIKEAPU
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In conisidcration of the satisfactory pcrform^cc of the services as determined by the State, the Slate
a^^ees to pay over to the Contractor the siim of S4,443,148.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the.
•-'Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2023 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the
US Department of He^th and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the .
following funds'will be authori^d:

LIHEAP PY2023 Eunds:

$330,84'5.06. for adrfiirusirauon costs, of which $54,923.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$2,759,1 iS4.00 for program .costs, of which $275,916.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$157,000.00 for Assurance 16.

Supplemental Funds:
i5l 18,53.6.00 Tor administt'ation costs;
SI,077.603.00 for progyara costs.

The dates for this contract arc upon Governor and Council approval through September 30,2024;

Appro.val to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the F^eral funds become available.
Drawdowns frorri the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only afler written docuinentation
of cash need is submitted to the Siate. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with
procedures established by. the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual:

CFDA Title:

CFDANo::
'j

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families

Office of .Community Services

CAPBM LtHEAP2).
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NEW HANfPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard exhibit D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with,the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et iseq.), and further agrees to have.the Contractor's representative,' as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the follbwing.Ceriincation:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVrDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF-HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US department OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF EN^GY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Scctions-SlSl-SldO of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 cl scq!). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May -25, 1990 Federal Registef (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a g^tee '(and by inference
sub-grantees and sub^.cohtractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certiGcate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed wheh the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or .violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspcnsion or icrminatibn of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarmcnt. Conoactors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Department'of Energy,
• 21 So. Fruit St., Stc. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a dng-fiec workplace by:
»  f

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifyingithe actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) 'the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) * the ̂ niee's policy of maintaining adrug-G'ee woHcplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee ̂ sistance prbgrarns; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the woi^place;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employce-'to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a'copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);'

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of .
employment under the grant, the employee will >

(1) abjde by the terms of the statement; and

LIHEAP2J P37 Exhibits D thru H
Awtrt#2)OINHLIEA/u6lKHLlEE . - ' ^ Plge l}of7.
CFOAfW.SM Init



CERTtnCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER.TUAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARtMENT OF ENERGY
t  . ' . • _

(2) notify the employer In writing of his or her convictioh'for o violation of a criminal dnjg
statute occurring in the workplace no later thw five calendar days after such conviction;

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2) from an employee, or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Ernploycrs of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
' officer oh whose ̂ ht activity (he convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency

has designated'a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

(Q Taking one of thc-foUowing actions, within 30 calcndw days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX?), with respect to.any employee who is so convicted:

(t.) ' .Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
icrminaticn, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitaiion Act of 1973, as

'  ' amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purfrases by a federal, state, or local health, law
•^enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort id continue to maintain a drug-free workplace throu^ implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c), and (Q.

(B) The grantee rhay insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done io
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, aip code) (list each location)
i

Check Q if there are workplaces on file that arc not ideniificd here.

c

Community Action Proeram Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. . ̂ October I, 2022 to .September,30,2024

Cdntractor'Namc Period covered by this Certification

Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer
' Name and Title of Authorj^ Contractor' Representative

tof-Repn^nUtj^ Smuure

1/8/2022

Date

LIHEAPU
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBITS

Th« ContTBCtor identified iri Section 1.3 of the Gencr*! Provisions agrees to cornply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-(21, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C., 1352,
and fuller agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identiilcd in Sections 1.1 1 and l.l2ofthe General
Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTinCATIDN REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARThfENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 4 CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US department OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): '
LIHEAP /

I

Contract Period:- October.!, 2022 to September 30. 2024 i . ^

The undersigned cerrifics to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf bf the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or',employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awahling of any federal contract, continuation, renevval, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-^antec or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for.
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection wiUi this federal
contract, grant', loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report'Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identifi^ as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiefs'(inc!uding subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. .

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
•madeof entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making'or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails3o file the required certification shall be
subject tp.a civil penalty of not than S 10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

_ _ _ ^ ChiefExecutive Officer
^ Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. | 11/8/2022
Contractor Name ■ Dwe

I

\
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees io comi?ly with ihc provisions of
Exccutive-Office of the.Prcsidenl, Executive Order 12549 and-45 CFR Part 76 regarding Dcbarrncnt, Suspension,
and Other Rcsponsibility.'Maticrs, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTinCATION REGARDINC DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILrrV MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instrucfionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submining this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) 'The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this.covcred irajtsactibn. If necessary, Che prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in conheclicn
with the NH Department of Energy's detcrmmation whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure
of the prospective prim^ participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall di^ualify such person
from participation in-Als U'ansaciion. . ^ ■

(3) The certification in this clause Is a material representation Of fact'upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government!, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for,cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to thcNH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns that Its
certification was cironeous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant;'"'"pcrson," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and "voluntanly excluded,"
.as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Dcfinilioi^ and Coverage sections of thc.rules
implementing Executive.Ordcr 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the attached definitions.

(6) Thc.prospectlvc primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this"
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prpspcclive primary participant further agrees by submitting"this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Dcbarrncnt, Suspension, Inellgibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NI^E, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A paiticipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a ccrtificatipn of a prospective particip^l In a lower ,
tier covered transaction that it is not dcbancd, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 'from the
covered trtmsaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which It dclerioincs the cligibility.of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and infofmation of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person In the ordinary ■
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for trarxMCtions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in'a covered
transaction knowingly enters int6:a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended; debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition.to other remedies
available to the federal govcriimcnt, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONStBILITy MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Cttiiftcaihn Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters • Primary Covered Transactions

(I ) The prospective primary p^icipant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:'

(a) arc not prcscnily debarred, suspended, proposed for debannem, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

•  (b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a'
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, ̂ tc or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or dcsthjction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;!

■ (c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of thc offcnses enumerated in paragraph" (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal; state or-local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneligibiUty and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(ToBe Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submittingThis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to tho best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) . arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospwtivc lower tier participant is unablc:to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled""Certification Regarding Debarment^ Suspension, IneligibiUty, and Voluntary Exclusion - Uwcr
Tier Covcred'Trens.actions;" without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and In all solicitations for
lower ticr-cbvcrcd transacBOTS.

J  Chief Executive Officer
Contractor RtfFn^.n^'rSignat^ Contractor's Repfcsentative Title

Community Action Program Bclknao^Mcrrtmack Counties. Inc. ^ 11/8/2022
Contractor Name
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

'  CERTIFICATTON REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILmjK ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections I.M and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the. following
certification:

By'signing and submiaing this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

bhtnicibr.RcR

Chief ExccutivcOfficef

ignature

Community Action Program Belknap-Mem'mack Counties. Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

mn622

Contractor Name Date

UHEAM]
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTTFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVTRQKMENT^ TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Uw 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994." smoking:may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or rcgul^ly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are fucked by federal progriuns either.directly or;
through state.or local governments. Federal programs include grants,jcoopcrotive agreements, loansand loan
guarantees, and contracts. "Hic law does not apply"to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Mcdicaid funds, arKiportions or facilities .used for inpaticnl drug or alcohol
treatment. .

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
alt sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $ 1,000 per day.

Chief Executive Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

rnmmunirv Action Program BeiknatJ-Merrimack CQVip'li?^ Lflg. 11 (8^0?^
Contractor Name ' •
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FAP Approval to Obligtte'

.STATE • »

Fif<1.7/1/2Qt&'Woo(l end SEAS Only

<^-.EXAMPLE ONLY

approva'l to obligate
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE-16

Eibibil I

TOTAL
CONTRACTEO BUDGET S38,220.00 .5.646,370.00 4.582.60 357,200.00 6.648.37^60
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.X
PREVIOUSLY OBLlGATeO •0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.X
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE •  0.00 - 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,651.x i
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00- ' 1.165.551.00 0.00 0.00 1.155.55t.X
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 536.220X0 4,460,819.00 4,582.60 357.200.00 5,380,621.60

BMCA

i

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCEie TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET . 65,663.00 1.003.SB6.00 '1.000.00 69.660.00 1.170.2X.X 1
EXPECTED BUDGET O.X
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED .o;oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.X

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE ..0.00 207,112.00 '  0.00 0.00 207,112.x 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE ■i- 0.00 207,112.00 ,  0.00 0.00 207,112.x
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95.663;00' ' 796.474.00 1.000.00 69.960.00 963.X7.X

SNHS
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 •- TOTAL

iCONTRACTEO BUDGET 183,777.00 1.718.162.00- 1,000.00 84,220.00 1.967,149.x 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATEO 0.00 .0.00 0.00 '  0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354,578.00 .  0.00 0.00 354.S78.X 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE . ^0.00 354.576.00 0.00 0.x 354.578.x
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163.777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.x 1,612,571.x

SCS
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTEO BUDGET ■ 63,835.00 876,601.00 -  825.00 64,960.x 1,029,121.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET' •  O.X
PREVIOUSLY 08UGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.x O.X

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 181,504:00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 '!
TOTAL AVAILABLE JO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 o.x • 181.S04.X
NOT AUTHORIZEO TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,9eO.X 847,$17.X

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. • FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTEO BUDGET S4.676.00 673,693.00 757.60 56,110.00 684,136;60 j
EXPECTED BUDGET O.X
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 ■0.00 0.00 O.X O.X

{THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 ' 0.00 116,373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE " 0.00 118.373.00 0.00 o.x 118.373.x
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55.110.x 566,763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019- AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
jCONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.x 1,695,767.00
EXPECTED BUDGET / O.X .
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.X O.X

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.684.00 0.00 0.00 303,684.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 • 303.984.00 .0.00 . o.x 303.084.x
NOT AUTHORIZEO TO OBUGATE 140,269.00 ' 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTASaiTY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The F^crel Funding Accpunlability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardces of
individual federal grahis equal to or greater than 525,000 and awarded on or after October 1,. 2010. to
report'on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of ihe date of the award.

In accordance with.2 GFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub^award and Executive Compensation Information), the '
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity;
2) Amount of award;
3) Funding agency;
4) NAJCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for ̂ nts;
5) Program source;
6) Award tltie.descriptive of the purpose of the funding action;
7) Location of the entity; ̂
8) Principal place of performance;
9) Unique identifier,of the entity (DUNS S);
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually, and .

b. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section i .3 of the Gencra.l Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 end Public Law 110-
252 and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as" identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

■ Provisions, execute the following Certification:'

The below named Contractor agrees' to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department 6f^er|y and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
i^bim^bllily.and Tf^sp^n^

Jeanne' Agri. Chief Executive'Qfyiccryi9

(C t  SlR^ra) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Community Action ProRram Belknap-Merrimack Coutlties. IPC.—^ 11/8^0^2
(Contractor Name) (Date)

Cnntractof Initiat^fi'
Date IV 'I:'?..
PageT or2
LrHEAP23 CFDA«3.568



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1:3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity Identifier fUEI) number for vour entity is: FND1A6MY3JD1 •

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants; and/or cpoperative agreements; aiid (2) S25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

I

^  .NO X YES

If the answer to above is NO, stop here.
$

[f the answer to ̂  above is YES, please answer the followiog:

3. Does the.public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1 S(d) of (he Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

If the answer to ̂ 3 above is YES, stop here.

If the aoswer to #3 above is NO, please answer the followlDg:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: . Amount:

■  Name: Amount: . '

Name: Amount: .

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Conuactof

P"« ilg-oiO'.
LfK£A?23 CFDA#93.368



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRJMACK COUNTIES, INC. U a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is'in good standing as far as this office is ccncetried.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number; 0005774597

% o

£

0^
A

N

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hartd and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

SccrMary of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMM. UNI T.rES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that;

1. I am a duly elected officer of Community Action Prooram Beiknao-Mefhmack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of,the Board of Directors, duty called

and held on January 13. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

Df^lef Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerls^, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and

further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and

any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire wijl rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltion(s) Indicated and.that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 10/20/2022 Signature of Elected OfficeL
Name: Dennis Martino
Title: ' President Board of Directors

Rr>.VlV2022
tfvCCM TOR - on* flwme

Mailing AddmiP.O'Box 1016, Concord. NH 03302 Adminiitfadve Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Coocord, NH
■ Phone; ,603 225-3295 ] 1 800 856-5525 1TY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 22a-TB98

^  Website: capbm.org



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATC (MJUXVrYVY)

osnofioti

THIS CERTinCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT 6ETWSN THE ISSUING 1NSURER(S). AUTHOiUZEO
' REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: 11 lha certtfleste hotdar Is an AOOrnONAL INSURED, tha poUcy(las) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba andorsad.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjact to tha tarms and condtUons of tha pollcjr. cartaln pollcias may rar^uira an andorMiriant. A ttstamani on
this carttflcaia doas not confar rights to tha cartlflcata hoidar in llau of such indorsamant(a). i

PROOUCOI

FIAI/Cress Insuranca

ItOOEimStraal

Manehactar NH 03lOi

AndrMNicliln

(603)669-3218 (603)6-5-4,331

AM^ESS: <n^nc^c«ns^cms4•g•^cy.com
ocsuKCMisiAPPOAnHC coveiuce HMCe

pfSuaeaA: SalacOvt msurinca Co. of SC 19259

Dtsuteo • . ..

CommiKiity Action Program BeiLnap-Menlmack Counties Inc.

P.O. Bex 1015

Concord NH 03302

Mjuaea •: GrartHa Suta Haaltn Cars and Humart Sar4eas Sad-

HSuaeRC; FodsralinsCo 20281

Msuaeao:

iMSuaea e:

wsuaFR f : .

iJS.

TMS IS TO CERTIFT THAT THE POLIOES OF INSURANCE USTEO 8E1.0W HAVE BEEN (SSl^O TO THE INSURED NAWED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
WOlCATEO. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMEHT. TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDCO BY THE PaiClES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL'THE TERMS.
EXaUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POUClES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS..
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Effective 9/29/2022

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MEiyUNUCKGOUNTIES, INC. ̂
•6-m:P O'w.e R 1 N G COMMUNITIES SINC'6 I96S ̂

BOARDOF OIRECTORS

Dennis J. Martino, President
Board member since: 2I2AI20Q5

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Chris Pyles.' Vice President
Board member since: 1/14/2021 ■ •

T  • ••

Theresa M. Cromwell
Board member since: 5/10/20.05

Saftya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Kathy Gpode
Board member since: 10/29/2009

A. Bruce Carrii* Secre/ary/C/er/f
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009

David Siff.'Esq.
Board merhber since: 10/2/2013

Ashley Reed
MS Policy^Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/1^2022

David Croft

Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/22 - 2/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22, 9/8/22,11/10/22,1/12/23

■; ».
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Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022 AND 2021
AND

independent AUDITORS'REPORT AND
REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

CONSdUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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To Iho Board of Director? j-tv^x . C(j.\a»ki»
Communily AcUon Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counliea, Inc. • stkatiiam
Concord. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Of>inJon

We have audited the accompanying consolidated rmanclal stalernents of Communily Action Program of
Belknap-Merrlmeck Counties, Inc. (e nonprofit orgenlzetion). which comprise the consolidaled
statements of financiaj position es of February 26. 2022 and 2021. end the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, end cash flows for the years then ended, and ihe related
notes to the consolidated financial staterhenls.

In our opinion, the consolidaled financial etatements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial
position of C^munUy Action Program of Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of Febrxiary 26. 2022
and 2021, and the changes in Its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended In accordance
with accountirtg principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Basis for Op/nion

We.cofulucted our sudit in ar^rdance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States
of America end the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Govemmenf Auditing
Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responslbllllles under those
staridards are, further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report, We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrlmacfc Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, In accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit We Ixelieye that the audit evIderKe we have obtained
Is soffident and approphate to provide a basis for our audit opinloos,

Responsibtlltiaa ofManagament for tha Financial Statements

Management is fesponslbts for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated, financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, irnplementatfon. and malnteriance of internal control relevant to the pre^ration and
fair presentation of consolidated financial slaicmanls that arc tree from matefial misslatement. whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the flnanctal .statements, managameni Is required to evaluate whether there are cpndltiorts
or events, considered tn the eggregate. that, raise substantial doubt alwut Communfty Aciion Program
of Beikhap-f^errlmack Counties. Jnc.'s ability to continue as e going"coricem within one year after the
date that the consotldated financial statements are available to be issued.



Audiion' RosponslbHUios for tho Audit of tho Financl^ Statements

Our objectives are to obtair) reasonable assurance about wtielher the consolidated financlai statements
as a whole are free from matertai mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors'
report that lr>cKjdes our opinion. Reasonable assurartce is a hlph level of assurance but is not at^lute
assurance ahd therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with Qenerelly
accepted auditing standards and Governmen/- Auditing Standards will always detect a matertal
moslatement when H exists. The risk ol not detecting a mal^aj mlsstatement resulling trpm fraud Is
higher than (or one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inlentlohai bmlsslo'ns.
mtsrepresentatlons. or the override of Internal control. Mlsstaterhents are considered material if thera is
e Rubstaniial Rkallhood thai, ir^divldually or In the aggregale. lhey would influenco the judgment made
by B reasonabie user based on the consolidated ftnanciat statenn.ehts.

In perfdrmir>g ari audit In accdrda'nce with generatly accepted auditing standards and Governmenf
Auditing Standards, we:

'  ' 'i
•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. jj

.  ■ 'l
•  Identify and assess the risks of material mlsstatement of^the consolidated finant^l statements. ;j
.. whether due lb fraud or,errof. and design and perforrh audit procedures responsive to those |j
,  risks. Such procedures include examining, on a lest basis. eviderKe regardir^ tho amounts and 'i

disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. ||

• Obtain ah understanding of. Internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit j
pfwedures that are approp'riaie In the circumslarices. but not for the purpose of expressing an 'i
opinion on. the effectiveness of.Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrlmack Counties.
Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, ho such opinion Is expressed. ;j

•  • ■

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poiicies used and ttie reasonableness of significant i r
accourillhg estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presantaUon of the
consolidated financial statements.

I

•  Conclude whether, In our judgment. Ihere are conditions or events, considered in tho aggregate,
that raise substential doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrtff\ack Counties.

'  ' Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with gov^ance regarding, among other maUers;
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings.-end ce^in Internal control^etatod
matters that we Identified during the audit. .



SuppfomMtary Information

Our audit was cdnductec} for (he purpose of (orming an opinion cm the consolidaled nnanciai statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of ex^nditures of federal ewards. as required by Title 2 U.S.
Cor^e of FedersI Regulations Pen 200. Uniform >*dm/n(sfrfl//Ve Roguirements, Cost Prir^ciples. end
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of addlllonal arialysls ar^ is not a
required part of the consolidated financial slatements. Such information Is the responsibility of
fTOnaoemenl and was derived from and relates directly to the underlyirtg accounting and other records
uMd to prepare .the consolidaled fmanccal slatamenls. The Information has been subjectod to the
auditing procedures eppfied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additiondl
procedures. Indudirig comparing and reconcibhg such Information directly to the underlying eccounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated fihandal statements or to the consolidated financial
6lalemer)ts themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing etaridards
generally accepted in the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the schedule of exper>dltures of
federal ewards Is fairly'stated, in all material respects, in fetation to the consolidated financial
stBtements as a wtx)te.

a

Other Reporting Required by Governmcnf Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmenf Auditing Stenderds. we have also Issued our report dated September B.
2022. on our considerellon of Commurtily Action Program of BelknapfMerhmacX Counties. Inc.'s
Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its' cpmpllance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracta. end grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the soope of our testing of internal control over nnanciai reporting and compltahco and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack ,Counties. Inc.'s Internal control ov^ fir^nclal reporlif>g or on compliance. That
report Is an Integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Stahdefds tn
considering Community Action ^ogram of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Concord. New Hampshtre
September 8. 2022



COMMUMirY ACTION PRQORAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IHC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash ■

Acbounta rociolvoble

Inventofy
Prepaid axpanMS

•• Iniifoslmeola

Total arrrenl assets

PROPERTY
Land. buWIngs and Imprpvcmene

,  . Equipment, lurniture end vehicles
" ConstnjcUoh In prpooss

.  .. Total property
('•

Less eccuriuleted depreciation

^ Property; not

OTHERASSETS

-  Cesh escrow and reserve (unds
Tenant security deposits
Due from retaled party '

Total other essets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABtLfTIES
Currehi portion of nolM.paysble
Line of credJl

.  Accounis payable
- Accrued expend

Rofundabio edvances

Total current UabOIties'

. LONG TERM DABlLltlES
.. PaychecA Protection Proeram (oen
Notas payable, lass curronl pcrtior) shown above
Tenant securlfy deposits

Tola) Rabiniies

2022

t.3S4,48S

5.244.621
271.92®
33:926
136.703

7.073.753

7.368.799
6.335.485

41.401

13.745.685

7.528.363

6.217.372

89.463

ll20
65.488

164.076

314.265
154.350

3.635.655
1.086.207
1.537.802

6.728.279

280.439

620,050

9.120

7.637.888

2021

699.766
3.762.609

55.699
73.709

127.996

4.920.17S

7.146.516

8.117.020
18.126

13.261,662

7.639.290

5.642.372

65.437

6.681

72.318

$ 13,455,151 % 10.634.665

213,444
380.026

1,625.632
768.051

1.036.941

3.945.196

1.935.300
939.697

6,881

6.627.074

NET-ASSETS
Without donor icstrtclions
With dorror .restilcdorrs

Totisl net assets

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

S; 179.734
• 637.529

6,817.263

2.766.959
1.046.832

■ 3.807.791

$ 13.455.151 $ 10.634.865

Saa t4otea to Consolidated Financial SlatefTwnts
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rOMMUNITY ACTION PRQQRftiyf BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK CQUNTISS. INC.

CONSGLtDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT .
Grant awards . .
Rental Incom©

Other funds

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
IrvWnd
United Wey
interest tncoiTw
Reellzed gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES
Progmm
Mer^agemeni

Total expenses

change IN NET ASSCTS

NET ASSCTS, BEGINHINO OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Reetrlctlons

S 36.462.087

135.'298
2.626.'432
1.615.427
592.136

2;123

'74

WllhObnor

Restrictions

2,650,984

Total

S 36.462,087
135,296

S.177.416
V.615.427

592.136

2.123

74

. 41,360.777 2,650.984 44.011.761

3.062.287 (3.062.287)

44,423.064 . (411.303) 44,011.761

40.b64;851
1.917:438

•

1

40.064.651
1.917.438

42.002,289 -  42.002.289

2.420.775

2.758.959

S  5.179.734

(411.303)

1.048.832

$  637.529

2;q09.472

3.807.791

S  5,617.263

See Notee to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY AnriON PROGRAM BELKNAP • MFRRIMACK COUNTIES. INg.

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENOED FEBRUARY 26:202J

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards

Renla.l Income
Other hinds
Irvkind
Untied Way
(merest Income
Realized 98in on sale of equipmenl

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS.RELEASED frROtA
RESTRICTIONS

Total

expenses
ProQram
Marmflement

Total expenses

CHANGE IN MET ASSETS BEFORE;,GAIN ON
INVESTMENT IN LIMrrEP PARTNERSHtP

GAIN ON INVESTMENT CN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BeGIMNlNO OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERREp FROM LIMlTeO
PARTNERSHtP

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions .Rostrictlons Total

S  20,825,325 $  s 20,625,325

123.657 • 123.657

2.375.403 3.733,525 6.108,628
490.035 - 490.035

5,297 - 5.297

383 - 383

3,500 - 3.500

23.623.600 3.733.525 27.357.125

3.047.50?' (3,047,507)

26.671.107 666.018 27.357.125

26.194.346 26.164.346

1.274.501 - 1.274,501

27,468.847
_ 27.468.847

(797.740) 888.018 .  (111.722)

64,397 . 64,397

(733.343) 686.016 (47.325)

2.992.894 362.814 3,355,708

- 499.406 • 499,408

2.758.959 $ 1.048.832 % 3.807.791

Sm Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternoota
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COMMUNITY ACTION PRQQRAM BELKNAP • MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IH&.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Solarieesnd wages

Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Progi^ ̂fvices
Other co^:

Accounting lees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shlppirtg
Equipment rental and mairtlensfKe
Printing and publicatjons
Conference, coriventlons end meetings
Interest

Insurance

Memberstiip fees
Utility end maintenisnce
Computer eervices
Other

Depredation
In-kind

Total funcitohal expenses

Prooram Manaoement Total

7,961.177 5  1.180,579 S 0.141.756

2.2%.660 226,375 2.525.065

rM.343 0.648 203,991
1.267,982 114.418 1.362.400

25.639.659 • 25.639.859

74.855 74.855

,15,361 162 15.513

159.844 44.534 204.378
!49.660 ' 8.731 58.591
1.141 1.141

28.133 27.698 55.829

:i 3.964 - 13,384

,29.167 26,641 56,028

124,730 43.856 168.586

'16.276 - 16.276

88,702 104,142 192.844

•111.990 - 111,990

926.679 53.611 980,200

566.151 • 568.151

592.982 ♦ .  592,882

S  40.634.851 %  1.917.438 "S 41602,269

See Notes to Consolidated Finant^l Staternenta
t
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i&r.Tipfj PROGRAM BEIKNAP - MPRRIMA^tS CPtj^TlfiS. IN^.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCDON^ EXPENSES
.  pftg THE YEAR ENQEP FEBRUARY 2B. 2021

Pfoorem Management

Satirfes end wages
Payroll taxes arKl benorrts
Travel

Occupancy

Proorarii services
Other costs; .

AccounUng fees
Legal fees ^
Supplies
Pbslage end shipping
CqUpmeni rental arid maintenance
Prtntl ng erid publlcaUons

• Conferences, conventions end meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership foes
yUllly end maintenance ,
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-Und

Total functional expereos

6,423.286 .
1308.290
14S.104-

1.293,121
11,796.741

587.382
229.777

609
136.322

Totej

0.010.868
2;538.067

145.013
1.'429.443

IT.796.741

80,013 80,013

19.604 •  • 10.604

165.804 30.710 196.514

56,087 8.988 65.073

6.738 • 6,738

34.582 3.551 38.113

632 • 632

39.505 22.938 62.533

123.704 27.528 151,232

10.040 7,019 17.059

190.837 ■ 62.iS49 . 253.386

47.178 8.660 55.038

564.082 68.257. 653,239

458.009 - 458.009

490.034 -
490,034

S 26.194.346 % 1.274.S01 $ 27.466.847

See Notes to ConsolldBted Ftnandal Statomools
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIOAtED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENOED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In assets
Adjustments to recondle change In net assets to

net cash from operating acUviUes:
Oepretiaiion
PeychecK Protection programt loan forgiveness
Interosl on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on sate of equipment
Gain on investment in limited partnership
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
expenses

Due from related party
Decrease (increase) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Refundable advarices

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVtTtES
Proceeds from saie of properly'
Additions to properly
Investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVTTlES
Net Pa^eck Protection Ipari
Net repayments on Hne of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES .

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND REtSTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
UMITED PARTNERSHIP

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH;
Cash

Cash escrow and reserve fur>d9

S  2.009,472 % (47.325)

456:009566.151
(1.615.427)

463

(7.200)

(1.481,612)
(216,031)

39.78'l
(65,488)

2.109,823
297.256
500,661

2.137.669

7,200
(1.141.101)

(10.797)

(1.144.698)

(39,434)
(225.676)
(219.309)

(464.421)

508.760

965.203

464
(3.500)

(64.397)

(1,203,458)
(32.979)
(18.723)

356.371
23.8^
(47.575)

(579.203)

3,500

(618.410)
(17.916)

(632.826)

1.935.300
(169,972)
(1^.152)

1.566.176

354.145

649,026

62.032

% 1.473.953 S 985.203

% 1.364.465 $ 690,766
69.466 66,437

s 1.473.953 5 965.203

See Notes to Consoiidated Financial Statements
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COMMimrTY ACnOM PROQRAW DELKNAf ■ MPRmMACK CQUKTlES IHC.

iCONSOUDAteO STATEMENTS OF CASH fLOWS (CO^NUEO)
FOR THE YEARS SNDEO f ESWAftt 31 20» AHQ1021

2S23 ' ̂

SUPPiEMENTAI. DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

CA&h pisid dudno (ho yMr far irtert>l ' .1 56.076 t 6?.SJ3,

80PPUEMEMTAL DISCLOSURES OF MONCASH INVESTING ANOFINANONO ACTNITIES

TroAtfar 0( EsfeCUn from oeMf comolidatad LF:
AcomfMi poyitKo *'
Aeauod e«icntM
SooNhydopooSs
Nott otysbfa

Tow troridor ol Bdiotiet trom iioMy lp

ToW nnsfar ot poAncrs' cepttaHrom now<y eorooadttad LP
PorthonM) cwRd ortviously rooordod is imestmonl (n poniet

Total irondor.of pcivwa' copMi novi*/ comoBoawd lp

10.627 i

'Tra(Wtero<tiMafrO(nn«wt*ireoraold«todLP: 1
'Accounts leoeiyibta •• * S • J 2.AS9 i
PnpalO •aptf>s«9 10.627
Property, nd . " «J.«»
SooAUy deposits 1

Tbtti trsnsfer ol.stsets from neoAy consofrdsied LP % L.t00t.S44

% S 6.626

7.062,

6.1)3.
336.3>t

t L

✓

3S0.330

s s 499.408
302.636

i t 703.346

Sm Notes (0 CoASoOdMed FinsncW Slstsrntnis

to



.  r.OMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BEIKNAP - IVIERRIMftCK CQWNTI6S. INC.

NOTES TO CONSCUDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

1  ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Gbunlles, Inc; (tho Organization) Is a
New Hampshire nonprpftt organizallon thai serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs or the tow Iricome and elderly clients in ihe two county service areas, as well as
stale wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
slate, county arid local organizations.

PrinelDles of Corisolidation

The consolidated financial stalerhents include ihe accounts of Community Action
.  Program Bolknap^l^flerrimackCounUes. Inc.. and ttw following entitles as Community

Action Program Belkriap-^Merrimack Cdunlies, Inc. has both an economic Interest artd
control of the entitles through a majority voting iriterest In their governing board. All ■
significant intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial siatemenis.

•  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
•  CAP SMC Oevelopmenl Corporation

of Accounting . w .u
The accompanying consolidaied financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accouriting In accordance with me accountir>g principles generally
accepted in the Unlt^ Stales of America.

^sls Of Presentation

•  The corisoWaled financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organlzatiori to report information regarding its financial position and activllies
according to the foliowing net asset classifications: ;

Not assets without doflor iestrfctions Indude net assets that are not
subiect to any donor-impos^" restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization; These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organizatiori's
management and board of directors.

assets with donor restrictions Indude rwt a^ets. subject to
stlputattons imposed by dorwrs arid grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in, nature; those restrictions will be met-by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restiicllons are perpetual
In riature, whareby the donor has stipulate^ the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

11



rOMMiiNITY ACTiON PROGRAM BELKNAP ̂  MERRIMACK COUNTIF S INO

'* t

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Donor restricted contributions are reported as Ir^reases in net assets with donor
restrictiorts. When restrictions expire, net assets ere reclasslfied from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without dorior restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $637,529 and $1.040.832 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. Is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and Is exempt from federal ir^come taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(cX3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization tiles information returns In the United Slates artd the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by tax authprttles for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C" Corporation
under the Internal Reverlue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset and liabiiily method in eccbr^dance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740). 'Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective-of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
bet^en the financial reporting basis end the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabdities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effedt wher^ such amounts are
malized or settled. ASC 740. also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be ̂ wn
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Cdrporattbn has no
federal net operating loss carryforwards available at February 28. 2022 and 2021.

Sandy Ledge LIrtiited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal Iricome taxes era
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and tosses are Iricluded in the
partners' federal inconrie (ax retums based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnefshlps ere required to file income, tax retums with the State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC'740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for rneasurtng, the
benefits of tax return positions In consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on Its income tax retums for the pam three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for Income taxes Is necessary In the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.

12



f^OMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM ftfff I^N/liP-'MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL.STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or. if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased wlt^ a useful life In excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation Is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
usefu! lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and Improvemsnts AO years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3 -10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conforrnily wth Urtited Slates
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent asseis and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results couid differ from those estimates.

Cash and Caish EquWatents ^ ̂  .i
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Oroanlzatlon considers
all liquid investments purchased with onginal maturities of thr^ months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has riot expertenced any losses In
such accounts.and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk wtth respect to these
accounts.

Contributed Services ' ' .
Donated servtces are recognized as contributions In accordance with FASB ASC No.
958 Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Mede, If the aenrtces (a)'
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized ^lils, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the conwiidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions ^
Dor^ted iacliities. services arKJ supplies are reflected as revenue and expense In the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. H the criteria for reOTgnttlon ntet.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Oraarilzatioh mlglit incur under normal operating activities. The OraarjiMtion reccl^
$592 136 and $490,035 In donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February 26.2022 and February 28. 2021. respectively, as follows:

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP -

NOTES TO'CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEO FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The Organlialion receives conlributed professional services lhat are required to be
recorded in accorcJance with FASB ASC No. 058.- The estimated fair value of these
•services was determined to be $18,731 and $18,937 for the years ended February 28.
. 2022 and .February 28r2621. respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food corhmodities and other goods that are
required to be..recorded in accordance with FASB, ASC No. 958. The estimatied fair
value of these food commodities and goods was. determined to be $573,405 arwi
$471,098 for the years ended February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively.

Advertising ,
The Organization-expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2022 and February 28. 2021 totaled $134,193
and $14,287; respectively.

f  .

Inventory

Inventory consists; of vyealherizatlon supplies and work in process and Is valued at the
lower of cost or net reaiirable value, using the firsl-ln. first-out method. '.

Revenue Recognltfon

Amounts received from'conditional grants end contracts for speciric purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are

" incurred or niet. CorvJItional grants received prior to the condition's being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
' as with doriior restrictions if they are received with donor irnposed stipulations that limit
.'the use of the donated assets. However. If a restriction is fulfilled In the same period In
which the contribution Is received, the Organization reports the support as Without donor
restrictions.

Prooram Service Revenue

Program service revenue Is recognized as revenue when the sen/ices are performed.

Rental Revenue. • . o
The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as Income, monthly,, when rents; become due. and control of the
apartment units Is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of
one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the lesMe In an amount that reflects the corisideralion the Partnership expects to
be entitled to In exchange for the leased units. The cost Incurred to obtain the tease
vrill be expensed as Irtcurred.

14



rOMMUNITY ACTiON PROGRAM BELKNAP -MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented In
the Consolidated ..Statements of Functiortar Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services ahd supporting activities, benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses Incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.

Expense Me^od of allocation
Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

2. UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 20, 2022
and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year end: '
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,384.485 $ 899,766
Accounts receivable 5,244,621 3,762,809
Investments 138.793 127.998
Cash reserves 81.143 62,103
Cash escrow ^-325 3.334

Total financial assets 6.857.367 4.656.008

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
fQel assets with donor restrictions 637,529 1.048.M2
Reserve funds 6^-143 62.103

Amounts not available within one year 718.672 1.110.^935

Flnandal assets available to meet general
e^nditures over the next twelve months £ 6.138:695 t 3734.073

It Is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $6,710,000 and $4,360,000. at Febnjary 28. 2022 arwl

'  2021, respectively. -The Organization has a line of credit with $445,650 and $219,972,
available to borrow on at February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively..

15



^--MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOUDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28.2022 AND 2021

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are staled at the amount ifianagemenl expects to collect from

■ balances outstanding et year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the val^Uon
allowahce and a credit'to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncolloclible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2022 and 2021. The Organization has no
policy for Charging Interest on overdue accounts.

if

4; REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue Iti the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed.or

*  Incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,537;0O2 a"nd-$1.036.941 a's of February 28,-2022 arid 2021, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers subslanllally all
employees.' The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
drgahizatidh. The expense of the plan for the,year ended February 28:2022 and 2021
totaled $166,976 and $193,103. respectively.

6. leased FAaUTIES " ■ ^
Factlitias occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years For the year ended February 28. 2022 and 2021. the annual lease expense for

.  the leased faclliUes was $544,299 and $542,317. respectively.

ThWapproximale future nilriimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended;

February 28 Amoyni

2023 ' ^ 478,248
2024 419,395
2025 245,038
2026 88.762
2027 88.762

Thereafter 668,2^7

Total
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATeo FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that Its. employees
have earned and vested wilh the employees in the amount of $660,158 and $415,580 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Of^anlzation has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreemenl (the line) with a
bank that Is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.25% and 4.75% at February 28. 2022 and
2021; respectively) plus 1%, but nol lass than 6% per annum. The line Is secured by all
the Orgarrlzation's assets. There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February
28, 2022. There was no balance'outstanding at Febmary 28, 2021.

the Organization has an additional revolving line of credit agreement (the line) In the
amount of $400,000. with a bank-that Is due on demand. The line calls for monthly
variable Interest payments based pn the LIBOR rate (2:41% and 2.62% at February 28.
2022 and 2021, respectively). Ttie line Is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2022. There, was a balance of
$380,028 outstanding at February 28. 2021.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
• For the" year ended February' 28, 2022, approximately $13,200,000 (30%), and
$15',30d,000 (35%), respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received
the Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury. For
the year ended February 28. 2021. appnoxlrriately $11,400,000 (42%). of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the. Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Orgarilzation Is dependent upon continued
support frorri these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT
Lorrg term debt consisted of the following as of February 28. 2022 end 2021:

5.50% note , payable to a financial institution in
monthly Installments for principal and Interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
prb^rtypf the Organization.

.2022

$  218,228 $ 225.459
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NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

5.75% note payable to a ftnancia) institution in
monthly instatlments for principal and Interest of
$13,912 through July ,2023, The, note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center.

. 2022

219,279

2021

375.827

3.00% note' payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements In monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. • 42,958 50.507

7.00% rote payable to e bank in monthly installments
for principal and Interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured, by a first real estate mortgage
and • assignment of rents and leases on property
located In Concprd, New Hampshire for Early Head
Stan. 116.572 164.553

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in morithly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiver) during the year,
ended "February 28. 2022. (See Note 11). 280,439 1,935,300

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Harhpshire Housing
-deferred until June 1, 2034 or until the project is sp\6
or refinanced or surplus cash Is available. The note Is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate. 343:081 343.081

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost 1.220,557 3,004,727

Unamortized deferred financing costs (5.803) (6.286)

Less arnounts due within one year

1.214.754

314.265

3,088.441

213.444

Long term portion i $  -900.489 $ 2:874.097
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2B. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of Febnjary 28, 2022 wero.as follows;

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2023 $ 314.265
2024 236,212
2025 ■106,239
2026 32,177
2027 18,840

Thereafter 512.824

S V220.5S7

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In April 2020, the Organisation received loan proceeds In the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program (-PPP"). The PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavlros Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (XARES Ad").

On September 14. 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness In the amount of
$i;615.427. The forgiven proceeds are included in Income for the year ended Febmary
28! 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted to a loan, due In 44 nnonthty
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28. 2022 is $280,439. (See Note

'  10).

12; PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment cbnsisied of the following as.of February 28.2022 and 2021;

2022 2021

Land 5 279,340 $ 279.340
Building and improvements 7.089,459 6.B67.T76
Equipment arid, vehicles 6,335,485 6,117,020
Construction In process ■ 41i491

13.745,685 13.281,662
Less accumulated depreciation 7.526.363 —

Property and equipment, net S 6.217.322 $ §i6^iSi372

Depredation expense for the years ended February 28, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$566,151 and $458,009. respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

13. CONTINGENCIES
The Organization receives granV funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the OrgarilMtion Is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found •
rwl to have been made In. compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay, the funds. No provisions have, been made , for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any. have not been determined or assessed

•  as of Februaty 26, 2022.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of Febmalv 28,*2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

NH Food Pantry Coa.lltlon
Senior Center

Elder Services

Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge ■
Summer Feeding
Common Pantry
Caring Fund •
Agency - FAR ,

; Agency Head Start .
■ Agency - FP/PN
Community Crisis
Other Programs

Total net assets with.donor restrictions

$  663 $  663

143.437 142,817
68,427 499,201
25,629 '

5.064 5,058

47,540 60.433

5.612

8,792 8,791
27,307 2,604

222.258 .  2:24,847

87,253 • 87.387

350 350

809 11.169

S  637.529 S  1.048 832

20
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Ofganlzatlon serves as the management agent for the following organizations;

Related Party Function

B.eimont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderty Houslrig, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Properly
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Properly Development
bzanam Place. Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The 'services performed by the Organization included, marl^eling, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operalir^ activities (collectively) at February,
28. 2022 and .2021 was $324,385 and $181,384, respectively, and Is Included In.
accounts receivabtes. Additionally, during the year;ended February 28, 2022, $65,488
was loaned to a related party and is recorded as' an other asset on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Communlly Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also Invested money
relating to Its Fix-It program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $138,793 and $126.996 at February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively.

ASC topic No. 825-10. FirSancial Instruments, provides a definKlon of fair yalue which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price,'publishes a framework In generany
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value te
a ■ rnarkel-based measurement, not an entity-spednc measuremonl. and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measuremente. in accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organlzatbn may use yeluation techniques cohslslenit with market. Income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for conslderirig market ■ participant'
assumptions in fair value measurements. FASBj ASC 820 establishes a fair value,
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements 'and the lowest priority to Level .3
measurernents. The three levels of the fair value Ihlerarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:
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NOTES TO CGNSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARV 28. 2022 AND 2021

Level 1'- Inputs to the valuation methodology.are quoted prices available in
' active markets for identical Investmerlts as of ttie reporting date.

<  Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
'  prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly obsen/able as
' of the reporting date, and fair value can be determir>^ through the uee of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
'situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting er^tity makes estimates and assumptions related to the

^ pricing of the asset or'liability includirrg assumptions, regarding risk.

At February 28. 2022 end 2021, the Organization's investments were classified as t-evpl 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value-Measurements using Significant Observat>le Inputs (Level

Beginning balance mutual funds
Total.'galns - rhutual funds

Erring balance -rnu^al funds

2022

126.996

11.797

2021

$  109,078

17-916

^  1^-796 i U&m

The carrying ambuni of cash, current assets, other assets arid current liabilities,
approximates fair value tJecause of the short maturity of those inslrumenls. •

The Organization also had $1,000 invested in a Partnership. The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February.28. 2021 ..During the year ended" February 28.
2022, the Organization Is no longer a partner and a final K-1 was received.

17. OTHER MATTERS
The impact .of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
are affecting, the Organization's business. The algrilflcance of the Impact of these
dfsnjptions, incfuding the,extent of their adverse Inipact on the Organization's finandal
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of lime that such disruptions
cordinue and. In turn, will depend on the currently uhknowable duralion of the C0V|D-19
pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be irhppsed in
response to the pandemic.
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PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMC

NOTES TO CONSdUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FgBRUARYi2B. 2022 AND 2021

18. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST
During the year ended February 28. 2021. Communily Action Program of Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. acquired a partnership Irilerest In a tow-Income housing
limited partnership, Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership.

The following la a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer

Cash

Cash reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses >
Property, net
Other assets

03/D1/2020

3,793
58,239

2.496

10,827

980.089

8.132

Total assets

Note payable
Other liabilities

£  1 063-576

-$ 336,311

24.019

Total liabliltias 360,330

Partners' capital 703.246

ToUl

capltai
liabilities and partners'

i  1,Q§?.?76

19. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and' accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
redassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.
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- MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events "are events or transactions that occur after the consotWat^.
statement of financial position dale, but before Ihe consolidated financial statements are
available to be Issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that
provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consoildated statement
of flrwncial position date, Including the estimates Inherent In the process of preparing
consolidated financial statements. Non-recogriized ̂ subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about "conditions that did.not exist at the consolidated statement of
financial position-date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through Septembisr 8. 2022, the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES-Td SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
Includes Ihe federal award activi^ of Communily Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc. under programs of the federal gdvernrhent for the year
ended Febnjary 28. 2022. The information In this Schedule is presenled in

- acoordance.with the requirements of Tllle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Reguiations
Part 200, Unlforro Administrative Requirements, Cosf Principles, end Audit
Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
preserits only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. it Is rwl Intended to and does not present the
financial positiori, changes In net assets, or cash flows of the Organlzalion.

NOTE 2 SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost prlndptes
contained In.jhe Uniform Guidance, wherein.certaln types of expenditures are rx>t
' allowable or are limited as to^relmbursernent. Negative amounts shown on the
• Schedule'represent adjustments or credits made In the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

.*h

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action Program Belknap-Menimeck Counties. Inc. has.elected not to

•  use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the_ Uniform
Guidance.

N0TE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

/  Nonmpnetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL ;CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUOmNG SfANOAffPS

I

To (he Board of Directors
Cortimunlly Aclion Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

We have audited, In accordance with.the audlling standards generally accepted in (he United
States of America^and the standards applicable to flnandial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptrollef General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28,. 2022. and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon-
dat^ September B. 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

tn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements,, we consfdened Community
Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s Internal control over flnarkctal reporting
(Internal control) as a bads for designing audit' procedures that are appropriate In the
drcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Aclion Program
Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal conirol. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency In'inlemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal courw of pertomiing their assigned functions, lb.
prevent, or delect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Intemal coritrol, such that there is .a reasonable
possibility that a material mtestatement of the entity's finandal statements will rwt prevented,
or detected and coirocted on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a, deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in.internal control that is less severe than a mtaterial weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control, was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during

28



our audit we did not idehiify any deficiencies in internal control thai we con^der to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significarit deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Beiknap-Merrtmack Counties. Inc.'s financial statements are free from rr^aterial m'tsstatemenl.
we performed tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grent agreements, nioncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect oh
the determination of the financial statements. However." providing en opinion on compliance
.with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, w.e do not express
such an opinion; The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompllance or other
rhatters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is sofely to describe the scope of our testing of Intemal control and
compliance and the results of th^ testing, and not to provide ah opinion on the effectl^ness of
the Organization's Inlemar control or on compliance. This'reppn Is an Integral part of an audit
performed In . accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the
Organization's inlemal control arid compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not .suitable

" for any other purpose.

Concord, Now Hampshire
September 8. 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Memmack Counlles, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

R9port on CompUance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Mpjor Federal Program
'■-VJV

We have aCRjited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrirnack Counties; Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described In the OMS Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Corhmunity Action . Program Belknap-
Merrlrnack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended Febnjary 28, 2022.
Community Artion Program Belknap-Menimack Counties, Inc.'s majof federal programs are
Identified In the summary of auditors* results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Community Action Program Belknap-Menirfiack Counties, Inc.. complied, in all
matertal respects, with the types of compliance requirements referr^ to atwve that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of cpmpliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Corhptroiler General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Tttie 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for-Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be Independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack
Counties. Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibirities. iri accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
Bufflcienl arVd appropriate to provide a basts for our opinion on cornpUance for each major-
federal progr^; Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Bolknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance wtth the compliance requirements
referred to atx)ve.
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Responsibilities of Manogement for C'ompllence

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for lhe
design, implementation, and malntenanw of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirement of' laws. -statutes, reguiatloris. njles, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to* Community Adion Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
federai programs.

'  k '

Auditors' Responsibitlties for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about vrholher material noncpmpliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred.' whether due to fraud or error, ar^d
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
Complience based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not
absolute assurance .and therefore -is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance wili always detect material noncompliance wheri it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that.resulting from error, as
fraud may involve coduslon. forgery. Intentional omissions.; misrepresentations, or the override
of Internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above Is
oon^dered material tf there. Is a substaritia! likelihood that. Individually or in the aggregate, it
would Influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on cpmppance about
Corrimunlty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counlies. Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in-accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Sfa/Kferds. and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise" professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit

•  Identify arid assess-lhe risks of material noncompliance. whether due to.fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those, risks. Such procedures
IfKlude OKaminir\g, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action PfX)gram
■Belknap-Merrimack CounUes. Inc.:s compliance iwith the compliance requirert^ls
refeiTsd to alcove and performing such other procedures as we corrsidered necessary In
the circumslanoes.

• Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Beiknap-Mafrlmack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over corripliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit

" procedures that are appropriate in the circumstan«s and to test and report on Internal
oonlfol over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counlies. inc.'s Internal control, over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion Is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other
matters the planned-scope" and liming of the audit and any «»9nlFtcant defiaerKiw and
material weaknesses in.mtemal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on tntemal Controt Over Compliance

A deficiency in Inlernal conlrol over compliance exisls vs^en Ihe design or operallon of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, Jo preverit, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a
type of compliance requiremeni of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, In Internal
control over cpmpliahce. such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material
noncornpiiancG with a typo of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or delected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deftclsncy in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over'compllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a malefial weakness In Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal comrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described In
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Conipliance sj^lon above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in Internal control oyer compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in Internal corilrol over compliance. ■ Given thew
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in" internal control over
compliance that we consider-to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant defidehcies in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
■ Internal control over comptlarioe. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose.of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of Internal control over compliance end the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is nofsuitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8,2022
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SCHEDULE OF.FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
.  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an-unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program. Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. were prepared In
acoordance with o'eherally accepted accounting principles.

2. No slgnificanl.deficiencies relating lo the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Oyer Financial Reporting and on
Compllence end other Matters Based on en Audit of Financial Statements Performed In
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program BalknaprMerrlmack Counties. Inc.. which would be required to be reported In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in Internal coniroi over rnajor federal award progran^s are
reported in.the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major. jProgrem and
On Internal Control Over Compliance 'Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The audrtors" report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action. Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinton oh ail
major programs..-

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
. section 200.516<a). -

7. The programs tested as major programs Include; ;
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Aging Cluster 93.044,93.045 and
93.053; U.S. Department ofTransportation. Forrhula Grants for Rural Areas. 20.509;
■U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023.

8. The threshold for distinguishing type A and 8 programs was $1,223,554.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk aiidHee., ^

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT ,
I

None ,

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONEO COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAIflS AUDIT
None • ■ ■
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pqMMiiNtTY ACTinN PROGRAlVl

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001

Condition: the financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldworl;
included eccounts.that had hot been reconciled accurately or In a timely manner.

Recommendation: The auditors' recommend that the financlai close process Includes e.revlew
of all significant accounts. i , .

CO/rent Status: Accounts have been reconciled accurately and in a timely manner. Not a
repealed flriding In the.current year.
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Effective 9/29/2022

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAr-MEBJUMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING •COMMUNITIES SINCE I95S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis T. Martino. President
Board member since: 2/24/2005

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

ChHs Pyles, Vice President
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Theresa M. Cromwell
Board member since; 5/10/2005

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Kathy Goode
Board member since: 10/29/2009

A. Bruce Cam', Secre/ary/C/erik
Board member since: 3/12/2020 *

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Heather Browri

Board member since: i/15/2009

David Srff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Ashley Reed
MS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

David Croft'

Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/22 - 2/2fi/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22.9/6/22, 1^10/22,1/12/23

lOuCArsM BOO *10:2



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

SENIOR ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES (SEAS) - PY 2022

SEAS Py22

KEY PERSONNEL

■Name and Title

Jessica Anstey, Fuel Assisiance Manager

Leah Richards, Director of
Energy & Area Resource Centers

Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal OfTicer

Jeanne Agri, Chief ̂ ecuiive Ofnccr

Annual
Salary

$44,850.00

$78,702.00

$103,000.04

$145,916.10



Anstey
Office Administrator with experience refined aver the past 12 years bf knowledge and skiU.buildme in the
field. Experience with facilitation of staff irainlng and development and a skilled relationship builder with
the proven ability to work with differing personaiityand comn\unication styles. Possesses experience
with direct responsibility for client case management, quality assurance and adherence to best standards
and practices acc'ording to current federal and state reguUtions. Intuitive ability to coordinate eHective
strategies for'tirne management, while striving to achieve positive outcomes for the company and
clients MystVen^h Is In the ability to recognize how to best be helpful, and fill roles where needed
most: It is very rewarding to be part of a welMunctlonlng team with aspirations and goals we can achieve
together.

Experience

MAY2022-PREStNT !

Fuel Assistance Program Manager/CAP Bolknap Merrlmack Counties
Hired to serve as the Fuel Assistance Program Manager, which oversees all aspects of the day-to-day
operations and management of the Fuel Assistance Program for two counties. This Includes planning,
implementation, monitoring, arsd reporting.

FEBftUAftY 2017-FE6RUARY 2022

Account Director and Officer Manogor/Onslto Drug Testing of Now England
Hired to Coordinate a fast paced oHIce offering the following services; drug testing, paternity
leslinH. workplace artd DOT compliance program management services, consulting and connerting and
sales of materials for on-site drug and alcohol testing. Responsibilities
accounts .nd:their. clients, crganiclng appointment schedules
with medical doctors to complete data entry of results reported by physician, maintaining r^ata
collection and entry (or federal databases for the United States Department onransportatlon, liaison
for the Stale of NH Chiid Welfare Systems to interpret and report testing results.

APRIL 2010-FEBRUARY 2017

Arfmifiiatratlvo and Inventory Spoclollst/WcLahe Cp. .w.k-.
*if"a. a Bi "rcrerV and promoted to multiple administrative rrsles within a seven-year

vendor transactions for timely payment and positive customer relations.



Education

May 2006

Asspclalos Degrea- Modlcal Asslstant/Hessor College, NH

Skills

• Proficleni with Microsoft Word, Access. Excel. PowerPoint and Outlook • Superior Aucnilon to
Customer Satisfaction • Detail Oriented • Advanced Communication Skills • Problem identlflcalion and
Resolution



LEAH RICHARDS

tmm
.SA

m

EDUCATION

Master of EtfucatJon

Mfher Cducetion

Ohio LhiivcrsftY
2004:2006'

Bachelor.ofSclefm
Joumolbm

Ohio Univerfity

2000^2004

teachinq

PCC201

Professional

communication and

career plan'nJrti.course

/njfn/cfoc two semEesfen

SNHU 101

Seminar course focused

on academic and sodal

tnnsltfon to ooDefe

Instructor, sbi semesters

SNKU 303

CourMfor college

Juniors focusing on fife
after codege

Instructor, two semesten

RA trafnini Course
Course focused on

leadership, sodal Justice
Instructor, four semesters

UC100: FYE Course

Developed lesson'plaru-
for four-credit course for

first year students .
Instruaor. one semester

PR6fES'SY0HAL PROFILE
Agile, coliiboratiye administrator with 17 years of progressive, multifaceted experience In

•' notvprofh settings. Visionarv. strategic leader and strong supervisor with a keen eye for

detail. Confident, techrwioglcally'savvy contmunlcator with experleoce.pr^entlng at
natJortal, regional, and loca.l.conferences. Particular strengths In establishing rapport,

'providing empoWeHng s'uperytsioa problcrh'soivlng, iupj^liig injlherab'le'p^ulatlons.
leveraging tecfinok^y. process imprwement,'and manning cfuhge.

EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program B6lknap>Merrlmad( Counties
Concord, NH 2021-Present

Director, Energy and Area Resource Centers Feb 2022'Pr^nt
plrec^ supervise the Fuel Assistance and Electric Assistance programs
Oversee Emergertcy Food Assistance for agency and supervise a Food Assistance
Manager and three busy food pantries

Manage tearri of 25 staff members supporting energy and food assistance through
network of resource centers in fWe locations
Serve a merhber of tfteagenc/s senior leadership team

Area Center Operations Manager Apr 2021'Feb2022

Supervised staff and volunteers for area resource centers in five locations
■  Managed three food pantries and served as CmergerKy Food Assistance Coordinator

Asslsted.wfth all operations. Including process and workflow Improvement hiring and

training, budgeting and ordering, and Implementing new technologies

Southern New. Hampshire Unlversitv

Manchester, NH 2010 - 2021

Ten years of progressive leadership in student support and adrtilnlstratlon. Began (n
direct service role as advisor before leading department and now multiple

departments. Coordinated robust advising program, induding leading through
successful office restructure. Created and Implemented new systems, policies,

and processes. Increased faculty usage of Early Warning system by 200%.

Assistant Dean. Student Success Aug 2017 - Apr 2021

Provided leadership to division of multiple departments with nearly 30 FT staff and
more than ISO student staff (both paid and volunteer positions)
Supported multiple directors of busy departments with daily operations,
prfOf1ti2atldn,'coUaboratibn, and change management

&tablished and grew academic coaching model jto support at-rlsk studerils
Managed divlsion-wrlde and campus-wide projects. Including staff onboardlng
processes, policy revision, and communication plans

Led as member of Enrollment Manag^nt and Student Success leadership team,
providing Insight to campus leadenhlp on student retention and persistence



LEAH RICHARDS

SERVICE AND

COMMITTEE

WORK

Emergency Food and

Shelter Merrimack

County tocal board •

(chair. 2021-present)

Neighbor Helping

Neighbor Board

member

Scholastic Standing

Committee (chair,

2017-2021)

Urtlverslty Policy

Advisory Board

NACADA NH State

llelson'ondSuering

Committee member

(state rep. 2017-19)

Basic Needs Support

General Education

Committee

ludicial Hearing Board

University Honors ■

Advisory Beard

Safe Zones Facilitator

Student Oub Advisor

to Generation Equality

Retention Taskforce

presldent'i

Commission on L6BTQ
Advocacy

(chair, 2012-2014)

EXPERIENCE continued

Director, Academic Advising Office _ Jul2014"Aug 2017

Cultivated, Implemented, and assessed successful, developmental first year/transfer
student advising program for on-campus students

Coordinated all advising services for campus of 3,000 students
Oeveloped ongoing training and resources to educate and empower 135 faculty/staff
academic advisors, increased faculty usage by early warning system by 200H
Directly supervise nine full-time staff rnembers and. indirectly,-40 student advisors
Provided leadership on policy developrment and revision, budget, program
dcvelopmenl, event planning, and strategic planning

Utilized a variety of technologies Including multiple CRM and information systems,,
survey and data tools, scheduling software, and film editing and Infographlcs tools

Assistant Director, Academic Advising Aug 2012-Jun 2014

Created initiatives and best practices for first year students on campus
Focused on campus collaboration development of high-Impact practices, Including
piloting themed learning communities and a new reglstration-model for new students

Academic Advisor ■Jui 2010'Jul 2012

Advised caseload of approximately 200 primarily first year college students,
develdpirig relationships, programs, and initiatives to support their development

University of New Hampshire
Durham, NH 2006-2010
Four years of increased responsibility in residence life department focused on deep,
developmental interactions with studcr^ts. Co-led New Staff Development team.
Organized a 'Future Leaders of Student Affeirs' conference and workshop series.

Residence Hall Director ' Aug 2006- Jun 2010

Cultivated community in two residence halls with populations of 150-300 students
Entrusted to launch a brand new traditional and suite-style hall which housed a
multicultural theme floor
Partnered with students and faculty to develop learning communities focusing on
civic engagement & diversity
Served as aconduct hearing officer, budget.manager, academic coach, hall council
advisor, and crisis responder



ill Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of
valuable progressive non-profit experience, looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,
bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accourjts payable, payroll, audit ^
■preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subredpientS; fl03B pension cornpliance and audit
preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21-Present
Chief Rscal Offlcer. Communltv Action Program Bclknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-forrprofit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The /^ency has over 300
employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staK, conduct budget meetir^s, prepare work papers for annual
audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage thedaily cashflow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for montiorings conducted by various funding sources, and review
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings. ■

10/17-12/21
>gnlof Accountant. Southerrt New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million In revenue with 30,legal
entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 rhillion In assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for
accounts payable and fuel assistance.payable positions, prepare surveys for various
governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 4030 Committee. Instrumental In getting PaperSave up and
running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

Ai the lime of my employmeni,'Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties was a not-for-
RTofit with 20 million in revenue. "The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered •
journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable Input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts
payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00-9/02

Account Supervisor ffor 2 Companies^ Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, Int Is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and
cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

9/98-1/00 .

Account Receivable Clerk ffor 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts,-prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers

5/93-9/98

Assistant Controller. Blosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,
handled petty cash funds. audlted salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared
journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88 - 5/93

Buslnest Officer. The Cafing Communttv of Connecticut, toe.

.

The Caring Cqmmunityof Conncctlcut is a nol-for-prolit with 18 million in revenue.

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,
coded cash receipts and .disbursements, reconciled bank accounts. screened job applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administratoron-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000 .

Bachelor Degree In Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State Unh/erslty
Graduated curniaude

1992-1996

Ass^ate Degree In Accounting/Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named'to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Menimack Valley High School -

Member of Nallonal'Honor Society..named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17 - Present

Director on The LoOdon Communications Council
Council.is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Louden
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NK website. Also served as Treasurer of the Cduncll for 2
years.



Jeanne Agri

professional profIle

Vcnatilc and experienced leader with highly developed coiuinunicolion skills; written, vcrhal and prcsenUtionol. Adept
in coaching and mcnioring employees, and colleagues as evidenced by my sclccrion by the National OfTec of Head Start .to
ien/e as a mentor for new Head Start Directom. Commin^ to wnti/nwus improvcmciii of activities to ensure they meei
outcomes approved by the boord through strategic plonning. creating goal^rientctl systems and conformance with all
IocmI; state and federal guidonce.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Concord. NH .
D/rector 2ulo-preseni

Assulu the orgoniMtion h» long-ninge slratcgy which m.kei consistent knd timely progress towerds meeting
the Agencies overall mission . . .. , .

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensurmg that all statutory, regulatory, and /ox
program and fmanciai requirem.enls arc met, that generally .accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures arc adhered to. *

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organiiatlonal structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board ^ ^

•  Establish sound working relationships and coopcrtliyc afrsngemcnu with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs. . •

.  See that the Board Director is kept .fully Informed and up to date on the condiiionof the organization eod all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Soulhero New Hampshire Services, M.nchc«cr.NH . - ' 2016.2018
Educallon and Nutrilhn OperationsDirecior , j

.. Coofdinate. manage and monitor workings of Child Dcveloprhent, Women Infant and Childrw, andLiteracy F^ograms, as well as development of an agcncy .widc Two-Generational Approach to services

.  Formulate, improve end implement departmental and organiMtional policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures^-

.  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational struciurc;
deleaaiion of tasks and accountabilities • . . ^

.  Sup«vi« stalT, including estnblishmeni of work schedules «>d monilocing end ev.luet.ng perfomenee m
oartnership with Executive Director ,

.  Assist in development ofstraiegic plans for opcralional activity; implement and manage operational
plans • *; 2001-2016

Director ofChild Dtvilopmenl Programs • _

.  H\n. eoech end eveluete the performenee of Progrem M.n.gm, Spee.ehsts. Coordmeiors. Center
Directors, teachers and Head Start support staff .

.  Provide coeching; utd leerning opportunities for ell employees focused on promoting, supportmg imd
irfiproving eerly development of children from the prenetal stage to five years of age using researxh -

.  pI^.n'd'lmpLent strategic interventions with Progrem Mimagers, Specialists, Coordin.tors end 'Center Directors for Bites iiecdingedmmisiret.ve support and direction

Mm coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening^siems toduality of sf^ices in compliance with He.a Start Performance Standards
.  Develop intemii structures, systems, and policies supporting rnajpr content areas of Head

including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities. an
transportation



.  Collaborate with managers end internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and Ihterprctatlon of Head Start and community nccd5; confonnance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory, requirements

•  Work in partnership with ihiefnal departmcnis to supporl project goals and meet cusiomerexpectations
.  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and parmers .

• ^ure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Stan Performance Standards

•  Ensure.consistcncy in service delivery across'the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

QualUyAssurance Director/Co-Director/orChUdDevclopmtnt Pr6gram^ 1W-2001
.  Established and tn'anagcd a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with welMcfined results,

milestones, and Urgcts inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality arid cofhpliance at Cramcc and Delegate, level . ^
.  Worked closely with program Director to review, track, and assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations -.u

.  Developed end implements o written quilily usunmce end performan.^ evaluation plan in conjunction wtth
Ooveming Board, Policy Council . , , . •» r ™ rn.

.  lottrprcted and evaluated a variety of information to present it m meaningful oral or written form for
viried'audiences end provide reliable analysis leading fo sound decision-makmg

1997-1999
Afta ManastT/Educolion Monogc^ . •

.  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/S.te Mjmagers
•  Coordinate personal and profcssiooal development and training plws for staff and enwre teaching staff

protirass tbwBjds educational rcqiiiremcnis as supported by the Pcrformanco.Standards
•  Documented and admini^ter^ both positive and negative feedback and uliltio Performance

Improvement Plans when wairnnled.^.
1995-1997

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager

.  Suoervised mcnlorcd, coach and administered work piuns and directives to staff >. ■
•  . COTmuttickfed eretu of perfdrtrt.nee improvement to st.ff and promote training that refined indivKlual

needs ofstaffmembers and the team as a whole . ^

.  Ensure program complianee with codes of state and local licensing egeneies and grant rtquuomanti
New Hampahlre Teehnleal College, Nashua, NH 1995-1997

'"'^Taught Child Growth & Davelopment and assisted in eurricolum development for Early Childhood
Education Program ^ ^ i • -

•  punn^ and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
.  Employed appropriate teaching and learning itralegies to communicate subject mmterJo smdents
. S^ified, w^ere applicable, instructional methods and strategics to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southem NeW Hampsbire University, Manchester. NH c. juneJOH
Mas^s in'Busincss Administratiof)

Notre Dame CoUege. Manchester, NH ,98,
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education


